
 

 

 

 
Three Rivers House 

Northway 
Rickmansworth 
Herts WD3 1RL 

 

LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BOARD 
 

NOTICE AND AGENDA 
 

For a meeting to be held on Wednesday, 24 January 2024 at 10.00 am in the Penn Chamber at 
Three Rivers House, Northway, Rickmansworth, WD3 1RL. 
 
  
  
  
  

Joanne Wagstaffe, Chief Executive   
19 January 2024 

 

 
1.   10.00 AM WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS   

 
 

2.   10.05 AM APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 

3.   10.05 AM MINUTES AND ACTIONS FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
NOT OTHERWISE ON THE AGENDA   
 

(Pages 3 
- 8) 

4.   HOT TOPICS   
 

 

10.10 AM Open for contribution  
 
5.   COMMUNITY STRATEGY   

 
 

10.30 AM Violence against women and girls  
 
10.45 AM Donations platform  
 
6.   FUNDING AND PROJECTS   

 
 

11.05 AM UK Shared Prosperity Fund  
 
7.   ITEMS FOR INFORMATION   

 
 

11.15 AM Community Strategy Action Plan  
 
Race Equality Week  
 
8.   11.20 AM FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/THEMES 

 
Meeting close 
 

Date for the next meeting: June 2024 
 

 

General Enquiries: Please contact the Committee Team at 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

 

committeeteam@threerivers.gov.uk 
 

Page 2

mailto:committeeteam@threerivers.gov.uk


October 2023 Three Rivers Local Strategic Partnership 

THREE RIVERS LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 

MINUTES 

Of a meeting of the Local Strategic Partnerships Board held on 18 October 2023 at 10am. 

Held at Three Rivers House, Northway, Rickmansworth WD3 1RL. 

PARTICIPANTS: 

Bob Jones (Chair), Watford and Three Rivers Trust,  
Becky Young, Three Rivers District Council 
Cllr Sarah Nelmes (Leader), Three Rivers District Council 
Cllr Steve Drury, Three Rivers District Council, 
Kimberley Grout, Three Rivers District Council 
Peta Mettam, Citizens Advice Service Three Rivers 
Tamara Valmas, Homegroup 
Karen Stephanou, Watford FC CSE Trust 
Peter Cogan, Watford Community Housing 
Keith Harland, Herts Fire and Rescue Service 
Priti Patel, Community Learning Partnership 
Debbie Stone, Intensive Family Support Team 
Shivani Dave, Three Rivers District Council 
Sophie Lawrence, Hertfordshire County Council 
Helen Flavell, Probation 
Michelle Wright, Three Rivers District Council 
Dan Bhamra, Herts Constabulary 
 

WELCOME AND APOLOGIES 

Chris Luff, Watford Chamber of Commerce 
Elspeth Mackenzie, Thrive Homes 
Jo Marovich, Herts Mind Network 
Kevin Hallahan, ICB 
Lena Brooks, Watford Job Centre 
Margaret Gallagher, Ascend 
Sophie Linington, Homestart 
Kips Green, Services for Young People 
Marie-Louise Nolan, ASCEND 
Danielle Levy, Herts Mind Network 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING 

The minutes of the meeting held on 20 June 2023 were agreed to be an accurate account.  

 

OPEN FOR CONTRIBUTION 

Cllr Nelmes raised concerns about community tensions related to Israel/Palestine. At the full 

council meeting held on 17th October all Councillors agreed that they should not do anything 

to inflame tensions. The Chair made a statement abhorring what has happened and terrorist 

activity, and asking for humanitarian aid for both sides. Our duty to calm civic tensions. 

The partnership should respond rapidly to arising tensions. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



October 2023 Three Rivers Local Strategic Partnership 

Michelle Wright stated the Council are involved in meetings with police and HCC to review 

the situation. Three Rivers has relatively low tensions, but we are aware things might change 

and quickly. There is a local plan with the police. 

Sophie Lawrence added there was significant community tensions prior to the conflict. It’s 

difficult to navigate – need to ensure that people don’t connect Palestine with Hamas.  

Keith Harland shared that Fire, Police and Council have Monday meetings and they will be 

able to share issues and concerns on a regular basis.  

Peta Mettam shared that CASTR has high number of Jewish staff and volunteers. One 

member of the team had a concern raised about the Israeli flag being raised by TRDC and 

potential tensions this could bring. PM asked the Leader how long the flag would be flown 

for. Cllr Nelmes shared that the flag came down on Friday evening. TRDC tend to fly a flag in 

recognition of an incident and it would have been inappropriate not to, considering we do for 

other incidents. Central Government did not require this, but council offices could if they 

wanted to. 3 councils within Hertfordshire flew it, and Herts County Council lit building blue 

and white.  

Helen Flavell shared information on a Ministerial statement that was released on Monday, 

the Prison system is now at capacity. Some prisoners (in category c and d prisons) will be 

eligible for release 18 days in advance of release dates. There are some categories of 

offenders who will not be eligible for this.  

This statement will impact on CGL, police and housing.  

Three Rivers Police receive information on people in prison currently who are due for 

release.  

 

BIG DOOR KNOCK 

Peter Cogan shared a presentation on the 2023 big door knock.  

This is the 4th year Watford Community Housing (WCH) have done the big door knock, 

whereby all staff knock on doors of all tenants.  

Knocked on 4366 properties, completed 1261 surveys. 77% satisfaction rating, virtual 

surveys come back 73-77%. 

Identified 45 new cases of damp and mould that hadn’t been previously reported 

Customers want WCH to improve communication. Predominantly around repairs – still 

experiencing some back log from covid, and struggling to access some resources as a result 

of Brexit. 

Cllr Drury stated saw some comments on socials that some people didn’t believe that WCH 

were doing this work.  

PC confirmed that residents were emailed and sent letters in advance of the door knock. 

Staff were wearing WCH t-shirt and had their lanyard, they also arranged for call back if 

people weren’t comfortable to engage at that time. There were also staff who were not used 

to speaking to customers on a daily basis, so perhaps lacked confidence.  

Page 4



October 2023 Three Rivers Local Strategic Partnership 

SN had been informed in previous years so she could do some engagement and show 

partnership working, but was not informed this year. Action: Peter to follow up as they 

wanted to reach out to all stakeholders. 

MW asked whether any ASB had been uncovered? 

PC had picked up on some illegal sub-letting which highlighted gap in knowledge around 

tenant fraud. As a result they’re beginning to develop processes around this. It’s becoming 

more of an issue nationally.  

They identified neighbour nuisance cases as opposed to high risk ASB or crime.  

WCH is sequentially working through all actions that arose on that day. Not doing this would 

impact on credibility in future years.  

Shivani Dave (ShD) queries what was included in the survey? 

Predominantly those shared within the presentation. They did identify that a lot of customers 

didn’t speak English. Action. PC to share what languages were identified within Three 

Rivers.  

People were concerned about cost of living, rent increases. More collaboration can be done 

with partners before the next event to ensure the right questions are being asked.  

PC added that communication around community events and initiatives needs to improve, 

especially to those who aren’t already involved.  

 

COMMUNITY STRATEGY: CONSULTATION  

ShD talked through the results of the consultation 

1030 people visited but only 40 people completed the consultation.  

Overall people agreed, with 6 people being the highest number disagreeing. This 

was in relation to the theme thriving environment. However, working towards net 

zero came 6th out of the 12 objectives.  

Some comments received related to including young people and older people. Some 

responses felt partnership working should be more explicit.  

Chair asked for agreement to adopt the community strategy, all partners agreed. 

ACTION PLAN 

ShD shared the 2023-25 action plan with the board.  

Priti Patel stated they had the South Oxhey community support meeting last week. 

Foodbank expressed people are becoming dependent on household support funding. Is 

something being done about this? SD has had a conversation with foodbank to explore this. 

SD will ensure this is escalated with county board.  

Peta Mettam suggested that within safe and well communities – something should be about 

partnership events, e.g. CASTR are attending the slipper swap this week. There are a lot of 

partners involved with this event and there are several objectives crossing over.  

Page 5



October 2023 Three Rivers Local Strategic Partnership 

Bob Jones informed the group some coordination around the cost of living was happening at 

county, but there are long wait times for CAS. PM shared there is no waiting time for benefits 

check at CASTR.  

SN suggested working with Herts Growth Board in relation to the Stable Economy theme. 

Action: SD to contact Herts Growth Board.  

 

Kimberley Grout suggested extreme weather initiatives already in place should be added to 

the strategy, e.g. climate change work happening, hot and cold weather from housing team 

(SWEP).  

PM suggested to advice into the cost of living section e.g. advice & support as many 

organisations already provide this.  

With the suggested changes the action plan was agreed. Action: ShD to share with the 

partnership 

 

Funding options for Community Strategy delivery  

ShD presented a report outlining options for the LSP to raise some funds in order to 

resource the work to deliver community strategy. Cllr Drury asked how the other areas find 

it? 

ShD advised the group that Watford had started earlier this year but already had received 

some income, and Hertsmere were able to cover costs and contribute towards existing 

grants pots.  

PM asked BJ whether their existing the donations were successful? 

BJ shared some are very successful e.g. £15k and Watford and Three Rivers Trust can 

claim gift aid in addition to this.  

BJ asked Three Rivers District Council officers whether CIL funding could be used, as other 

districts have been successful in this.  

SN answered CIL is capital money so can’t be used.  

Debbie Stone suggested a donation or lottery platform would work better if people know 

what they’re giving towards. Need to make this clear when promoting.  

SN stated they wouldn’t want the lottery to be council branded.  

PM shared CASTR has been doing a lot of work around gambling aware in recent months, 

so would need to consult county CAS on their involvement.   

The Board agreed for ShD and BJ to explore donations and feed back to the meeting at the 

next LSP.  

SD suggested trying for HS2. BJ could lead this bid. PM and PP would like to be involved in 

the development of the bid and prioritising what to bid for. Any decisions would be circulated 

to the board via email.  

 

National Prevent Overview  

Page 6



October 2023 Three Rivers Local Strategic Partnership 

Sophie Lawrence, Hertfordshire Prevent Manager, provided an overview of the current 

situation. The UK is currently at threat level substantial. In France the threat level has 

increased most likely as a result of Israel Palestine tensions. Last UK terror attack was anti-

immigrant attack in Dover.  

Highest ideology through national prevent referrals is Extreme Right Wing (ERW) followed 

by Islamist. Presence of incel and school massacre ideologies are also within referrals. 

Independent Review of Prevent published in February 2023.  

In prevent space there are more ERW referrals made, but Islamist cases are at a higher 

number at investigation stage. SL is involved in exploring why there is this disparity.  

Seen an increase in anti immigration activity. Stabbing in Hartlepool fyi : Hartlepool: Terror 

probe murder accused appears in court - BBC News? This investigation involves counter-

terrorism policing which has led to headlines that could be considered inflammatory.  

Direction of prevent: independent review picked up on 34 recommendations, some highlights 

were discussed..  

Why is there a discrepancy between Islamist and XRW concerns (referral numbers 

vs threat)? 

Friends and family – e.g. of parent being concerned about their child being 

radicalised. Trying to boost awareness of prevent within our communities.  

Prevent duty guidance has been updated 

Terminology – now looking at susceptibility rather than vulnerability. Changes 

perspective to put some decision making onto the person.  

Permissive environment – looks at venues, e.g. faith groups, sports halls – to ensure 

we’re not allowing radicalisation to be promoted in these spaces.  

Hamas is a proscribed group in the UK. Hamas and Palestine are two different entities – we 

should not be considering them one and the same. Hezbollah is a proscribed terrorist group 

– they have started to get involved in the Israel/Palestine conflict.  

Stabbing in France and shooting in Belgium relating to Israel/Palestine. Starting to see 

tensions globally.  

Organisations encouraged to contact Sophie if they would like a briefing or training relating 

to prevent. sophie.lawrence@hertfordshire.gov.uk 

All partners are reminded to contact Sophie if they see any concerning images or graffiti. 

This would not be considered a prevent referral.  

 

AOB  

N/A 

 

 

 

 

Page 7

https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/F3DBC3jkRs1oJNFgzQJZ?domain=bbc.co.uk
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/F3DBC3jkRs1oJNFgzQJZ?domain=bbc.co.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



VIOLENCE AGAINST

WOMEN AND GIRLS
What can you do to help?

P
age 9

A
genda A

nnex



WOODGROVE
BANK

ABOUT VAWG

VAWG is not a new concept, it is an historical issue seen throughout the 
decades in one form or another and remain ever present today. It is defined 
as any act of gender-based violence that results in, or is likely to result in, 
Physical, sexual or Psychological harm or suffering to women, including 
threats 0f such acts, coercion or deprivation of liberty.  It is important to be 
clear and to reiterate what VAWG includes so that everyone working towards 
the elimination of VAWG understands what they are fighting for. VAWG 
includes Rape, domestic Violence, forced marriage, Honour based violence, 
FGM and sexual harassment. It is important to acknowledge that Men and 
Boys can also experience the same forms of Violence however, Victims are 
disproportionally women and perpetrators are disproportionally men.

Jemma Duffell

P
age 10

https://www.bing.com/ck/a?!&&p=258760ff932187daJmltdHM9MTcwNDQxMjgwMCZpZ3VpZD0yZDgzYjc5ZC03NzMyLTY2OGUtMTVhOC1hNGI0NzYxNTY3ZTcmaW5zaWQ9NTc4OA&ptn=3&ver=2&hsh=3&fclid=2d83b79d-7732-668e-15a8-a4b4761567e7&psq=what+is+VAWG&u=a1aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZW5kdmlvbGVuY2VhZ2FpbnN0d29tZW4ub3JnLnVrL3dwLWNvbnRlbnQvdXBsb2Fkcy9FVkFXLUNvYWxpdGlvbi1TY2hvb2xzLUd1aWRlLnBkZg&ntb=1
https://www.bing.com/ck/a?!&&p=258760ff932187daJmltdHM9MTcwNDQxMjgwMCZpZ3VpZD0yZDgzYjc5ZC03NzMyLTY2OGUtMTVhOC1hNGI0NzYxNTY3ZTcmaW5zaWQ9NTc4OA&ptn=3&ver=2&hsh=3&fclid=2d83b79d-7732-668e-15a8-a4b4761567e7&psq=what+is+VAWG&u=a1aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZW5kdmlvbGVuY2VhZ2FpbnN0d29tZW4ub3JnLnVrL3dwLWNvbnRlbnQvdXBsb2Fkcy9FVkFXLUNvYWxpdGlvbi1TY2hvb2xzLUd1aWRlLnBkZg&ntb=1


WOODGROVE
BANK

CHANGES FOR A BETTER WAY OF LIFE

Over time changes to legislation support and empower women to make decisions 
about their own lives. These changes only work if people understand the purpose 
and intention of the new laws

3

20031974

1975

1976

2003

Women’s Aid was formed
First organisation to fight for 
women's rights 

2014

2021

Sexual Discrimination Act
Addressed sexual discrimination 
in the workplace

Domestic Abuse and Matrimonial 
proceedings Act
Enabled Married women to stay in 
the property without their abuser.

Sexual Offences Act
Acknowledged that Rape in Marriage 
was still rape and made it a criminal 
offence.

Female Genital Mutilation Act
included mandatory reporting of 
FGM and carries up to 14 years 
in prison.

Claires Law
police policy – request for 
information about your current or 
ex-partner's previous history of 
violence or abuse.

Domestic Abuse Act 
Included Coercive control as a 
form of DA and acknowledged 
Children as victims of DA.

Jemma Duffell

P
age 11



WOODGROVE
BANK

WHAT CAN WE DO AS ORGANISATIONS?
Call out unacceptable behaviour in and out of the workplace – It is important for men 

to call out other men’s behaviour and not let misogynistic and sexist comments continue 
to be deemed as ‘banter’

Consider becoming White Ribbon accredited – By agreeing to become accredited you 
are agreeing to look at all your organisational policies and ensure that the language and 
actions within them are appropriately aligned to ended Male violence against women.

4

Most importantly - Share Resources

• Share with the group any funding available for work around VAWG & consider 

making joint applications.

• When you receive emails from other organisations about awareness campaigns, 

projects, programmes and training, forward them to all your contacts, you may not 

think these are professionally relevant but try to remember that many victims of 

Violence are professionals.

• Promote the Feelings of safety survey – Both Three Rivers and Watford have their 

own. The data collected can be used for funding bids.

• Use free resources like the Hollie Guard App to make residents feel safe and heard.
Jemma Duffell

P
age 12



WOODGROVE
BANK

WHAT WE ARE DOING LOCALLY- PARTNERSHIP WORKING 

Jemma Duffell

As a District we join forces with the other 
local authorities in Hertfordshire to present 

a united front for ‘16 days of activism’.

5

We raised the 
flag for White 

Ribbon

We ‘Orange the 
world’ for 

international 
elimination of 

violence against 
women and 

Girl's day 

We raised 
money for 

Charity

• Police led Female Self-defence classes. – Free 6-
week course open to all females in Rickmansworth.

• Charity led Female self-defence classes – Sisters 
for VAWG are running classes in South Oxhey.

• Promoting the Chrysalis centre at all Council led 
partnership meetings.

• Engaging perpetrators in interventions – Free full 
day training programme for female professionals in 
engaging and changing the behaviour of perpetrators 
of Domestic abuse and VAWG.

• Walk with a Cop - launched in Rickmansworth and 
Abbots – areas of vulnerability were highlighted by 
Echo surveys that were sent to residents of Three 
Rivers and a route was planned. SNT were joined by 
partners from the Council and members of the public 
to identify problems that lead to residents feeling 
unsafe

• Increased foot Patrols around nighttime economy 
and school start and finish times.

• Safer Neighbourhood Team stands incorporating 
VAWG – supplying safety advice, leaflets and 
merchandise to increase feelings of safety.

P
age 13



WOODGROVE
BANK

SUMMARY

6

Eliminating Violence 
against Women and Girls 
will not happen overnight

We can only do our best, 
all efforts make a 

difference

If you are considering a 
project and don’t have the 

resources on your own, 
ask for support from 

another partner.

Take part in important 
days of the year, 16 days 

of action, Orange the 
world and white ribbon 

day.

Share other partners 
information about VAWG, 

We need to protect our 
colleagues as well as out 

residents.

Share funding opportunities, 
everyone should have the 

same opportunities to bid for 
money to support their 

residents and deliver robust 
and sustainable support 

services.

Lastly, 

Violence against women 
and girls is everyone’s 

business.

Jemma Duffell

P
age 14



WOODGROVE
BANK

Any Questions?

7
Jemma Duffell

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
       

  

  

 

UK Shared Prosperity 
Fund  

 

Investment Plan Draft for Approval  

 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 

29 July 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17

Agenda Annex



2 
 

Your details 

Name:  Emma Sheridan  

Email address: emma.sheridan@threerivers.gov.uk 

Phone number: 01923 727349 

Organisation name: Three Rivers District Council  

Local challenges and opportunities 

 

ARE THERE ANY LOCAL CHALLENGES YOU FACE WHICH FALL UNDER THE 
INVESTMENT PRIORITIES? 

(If yes) Describe these challenges, give evidence where possible 

 
COMMUNITIES AND PLACE 
 
Nested Deprivation and Equality of Opportunity 
Whilst the District is prosperous in many areas, there are areas (South Oxhey, Mill End 
and Maple Cross) that are in the 10% most deprived. Action is being taken but more is 
needed to improve those areas, provide support to improve life chances for the most 
vulnerable, and rebuild community resilience following the pandemic and the onset of the 
cost of living issues that have followed. Wards like Mill End and South Oxhey face 
considerable inequalities. For example, South Oxhey has the highest amount of 
households rented from the Council, the highest number of people claiming 
unemployment benefit, the highest percentage of residents with no qualifications, and the 
highest number of households with dependent children. It is the ward with the second 
highest population of under 15 year olds in the district, and the highest mortality rate of all 
wards1. 
 
South Oxhey ward has the highest proportion of the population who are in the 0-15 age 
group, which represents 9.09% of the total population within the ward. Chorleywood North 
& Sarratt ward has the highest number of people aged 65 and over representing 10.71% 
of the total population of the Ward South Oxhey ward has the highest number of Black / 
African / Caribbean /Black British residents in Three Rivers 
 
The overall employment rate (working-age) in Three Rivers was 76.7% in 2018 Q2 (12 
months ending) compared to 79.4% in Hertfordshire and 78.2% in East of England. South 
Oxhey ward has the highest percentage of residents in Three Rivers who are claiming 
unemployment benefit. 
 
Health Inequality 
Long-term conditions are statistically more prevalent in older people aged 65 and over. 
(58% of people over 60 compared to 14% under 40 nationally) and in more deprived 
groups (people in the economically poorest social class have a 60% higher prevalence 
than those in the economically wealthiest social class and a 30% higher severity of 
disease).  
 
15.9% of people in Three Rivers report having a long term Musculoskeletal problems. 
Further to this, 7 in 10 people who report living with a long-term MSK condition are 
overweight or obese.   

 
1 https://reports.esd.org.uk/reports/14?pa=E07000102:AdministrativeWard  

Page 18

https://reports.esd.org.uk/reports/14?pa=E07000102:AdministrativeWard


3 
 

Individuals from BAME communities are evidenced to be at a higher risk of developing 
certain long term conditions, such as diabetes and heart disease as a consequence of a 
higher prevalence of underlining risk factors including obesity. Consequently this 
population are disproportionately affected and experience poorer health and subsequently 
socio-economic outcomes.  
 
There is not a statistically large BAME population in Three Rivers, as such this can make 
these communities harder to reach locally and it is, therefore, important to ensure that 
interventions are accessible to these underrepresented population groups and to identify 
and mitigate any barriers that they may be facing.   
 
Decarbonisation 
In Three Rivers, the average household carbon emission is three times higher than the 
national average2, and over 40% of carbon dioxide emissions are due to road transport, 
considerably higher than the national average of 25%.  
 
Biodiversity 
A 2021 Biodiversity Opportunities Audit has identified habitat improvements throughout the 
district - including alternative grassland management, the need for additional trees, the 
creation of a wetland area, support for the introduction or protection of rare species, and 
improved site wildlife interpretation – all of which are currently hindering the flourishing of 
ecosystems and diverse habitats in the district. The Rickmansworth Aquadrome in particular 
requires major maintenance work and increased investment as an existing flood plain. 
 
Play areas, parks, open spaces and woodlands  
Three Rivers hosts four Green Flag status parks: Rickmansworth Aquadrome, Chorleywood 
House Estate, South Oxhey Playing Fields and Leavesden Country Park, and over 70% of 
the district is designated as Green Belt. Councillors, residents and ‘Friends of’ groups have 
identified the need for improvements to the district’s open spaces. In order to maintain and 
improve these and all green spaces in the district, and increase their footfall, the spaces 
need repair work, improved accessibility for all, sculpture trail enhancements, and site-wide 
furniture. Some play area equipment has had to be disabled due to disrepair, raising safety 
concerns.  
 
Cost of Living  
The Community and Voluntary Sector within Three Rivers are reporting significantly 
increased service demand. Three Rivers Citizens Advice have seen a 72% increase in  
clients presenting with debt problems in the first quarter of this year compared with the 
same period last year – a concerning trend within this is the significant increase in 
numbers presenting who are already in employment. Local Food Banks are reporting 
increasing demand in the context of decreased donations – donations are down 3 tonnes 
per month.  
 
Arts, Culture and Sport 
Watersmeet Theatre, located in Rickmansworth is a principal arts and culture (both 
commercial and community) centre for the District. The Theatre has seen a reduction in 
footfall since the pandemic.  
 
Three Rivers District Council's Leisure Centres are located within two of the most deprived 
wards in the district, South Oxhey and Mill End. As in many areas, the Leisure Centres were 
negatively impacted by the pandemic. This will be further aggravated by the rise in inflation, 
which will necessitate increased prices (e.g. for swimming lessons), and the wider cost of 
living difficulties that families in the District are experiencing which is and will continue to 

 
2 www.impact-tool.org.uk  

Page 19

https://www.threerivers.gov.uk/download?id=51697
http://www.impact-tool.org.uk/


4 
 

negatively impact the ability of many families to make healthy lifestyle choices and engage 
in art, culture and sport.  
 
SUPPORTING LOCAL BUSINESS  
Access to local, affordable, and accessible ‘grow-on’ space for many small and micro 
businesses is challenging the District. Whilst it is unclear how office space will be used in 
the future, there is potentially the opportunity to convert to ‘grow on space’ for growth 
businesses. 
 
The District hosts a number of major employers who have all experienced significant 
change. Engaging with and understanding the issues that have and will impact these large 
businesses is important in ensuring that the best support and environments can be 
created as the economy recovers in a post-pandemic world. 
 
PEOPLE AND SKILLS 
Whilst the District has many highly skilled people, local employers are still experiencing a 
skills gap with many hard to fill jobs. Those living in the District are well qualified; 51% 
hold a degree or equivalent qualification (42% in Hertfordshire and 39% in UK) and earn 
circa £5,000 per annum above the UK average. However, there are also populations 
within the District that are unable to access the pathways available to gain new skills and 
so their life chances are more limited.  
 
The pandemic has seen significant job losses by both young people and older people In 
June 2021 the economic activity rate decreased by 7.9% from pre-pandemic level to 78%. 
During the same time claimants rose by 127% to 2,085. The pandemic has created a 
demand from employers for a range of new skills which are now in high demand e.g., 
digital, driving etc. Consequently, skills development and employment has become a 
higher priority not only for key populations within the district but also for local employers. 
 
In many cases, after benefitting from high levels of support during school years, people with 
learning disabilities leave the education system and struggle to find employment 
opportunities. This commonly leads to feelings of isolation, reliance on family and mental 
health issues. The Covid-19 pandemic has enhanced these problems and led to even 
further struggles for this community. Hertfordshire has one of the highest known populations 
of adults with learning disabilities in the UK, with Three Rivers being amongst the most 
known to local services and providers. This population is predicted to increase by a further 
9% by 2025 (NHS Digital 2021). Only 5.1% of adults with a learning disability, known to their 
local authority in England, are in paid work (NHS Digital 2021), yet it is believed that around 
80% could work (Mencap, 2015), this, however, can be extremely difficult without the 
appropriate support infrastructure in place post statutory education age. 
 
 

ARE THERE ANY LOCAL OPPORTUNITIES UNDER INVESTMENT PRIORITIES THAT 
YOU INTEND TO SUPPORT? 

(If yes) Describe these opportunities, give evidence where possible 

 
COMMUNITY AND PLACE  
 
Regeneration  
Significant development is already underway and planned in key locations across the 
District. The South Oxhey regeneration scheme is providing high quality, mixed-use 
development, including 500 additional homes, and shopping facilities with a direct London 
Overground connection to Central London. The planned Maple Cross regeneration aims 

Page 20



5 
 

to grow both in homes, infrastructure, services, and job opportunities in a sustainable 
manner 
 
The two London boroughs to the south of Three Rivers have both grown quickly in terms 
of population –this may create both opportunities and pressures looking ahead. 
 
Healthy Communities  
Opportunity exists to address health inequalities within the District through a placed-based 
public health programme, targeting specific population groups and identified needs locally. 
With three existing healthy hubs now located in some of the most socially deprived areas 
across the District, namely South Oxhey, Mill End and Abbots Langley, delivery of tailored 
interventions is made accessible. Hertfordshire Sports Partnership has identified South 
Oxhey as an area of priority in which targeted interventions are required to improve health 
outcomes and resident engagement with the local environment. The Council’s health 
inequalities projects present an opportunity to add value to this. 
 
Evolution of the High Street  
The recent Three Rivers High Street survey 2021 showed that the high street is a place 
that local people value, in particular the feeling of community and belonging. The 
pandemic and the various lockdowns have been challenging for many businesses who 
have needed to adapt to survive and grow. Our High Streets are attracting change and 
more residents, and they need to be liveable, not just for the people who live there but 
those who, work, visit and shop there. There are therefore opportunities for our local High 
Streets to play a part in adapting to meet the needs of a different local customer group 
and to be an agent for positive change 
 
Strong Business, Arts and Culture Base  
Three Rivers is a successful local economy and one that appears to be thriving on the 
main metrics. It has a range of sectors, some of which are higher value –and it does well 
relative to its neighbours. Importantly, the stock of enterprises per head of population is 
high – suggesting a culture of enterprise. 
 
The District’s proximity to London, accessibility to a range of national transport routes and 
international travel makes it an ideal location. The location is also desirable in some 
sectors such as the creative and technology industry due to its proximity to many 
competitors who are attracted to the availability of the talent pool available locally. Whilst 
property prices may be high, it is an attractive place to live with the benefits of rural life but 
close to London. Many small businesses cite affordability and availability of premises as a 
reason why they would choose to locate in the District. Many of the micro and small 
businesses being established by local people who wish to trade locally. 
 
Three Rivers District has several innovative and technology-based businesses and 
clusters. There is the opportunity to build on existing innovation clusters to enable the 
District to continue to grow and scale-up enterprise and innovation with its partners.  
 
There is also the opportunity to capitalise on the opportunities that Warner Bros. in 
Leavesden brings. This can be to drive the catalytic growth sector of the arts, 
entertainment, and creativity in a range of supply chains. As an emerging arts and 
entertainment cluster has been identified regionally as a catalytic growth cluster  
 
Visitor Economy 
Three Rivers is boosted by its attractions such as Warner Bros., Leavesden Country Park: 
The Grove Hotel, The Rickmansworth Aquadrome, Batchworth Lock, and many of the 
District’s food and drink establishments as well as the Council owned and managed 
Watermeet Theatre. The offer has the potential to support growth in visitor economy to 

Page 21



6 
 

ensure continued sustainability for the District as well as offering affordable access to 
carts and culture to our residents. 
 
The District has a high number of day visits and visitors who stay with friends and relatives 
(VFR), there is an opportunity to convert day visits into longer packaged stays and provide 
additional packages to the VFR market. 
 
Decarbonisation and Green Skills 
The Council has been at the forefront of advancing this agenda and is leading by 
example. A clear net zero route map including pathways that demonstrate support for 
businesses and how they can green their supply chains (where commonly over 60% of 
emissions are found) is in development and will create opportunities to lead strong 
business action in this area.  
 
It is estimated green jobs can support a thriving economy in the long-term; nearly 700,000 
direct jobs could be created in England’s low- carbon and renewable energy industry by 
2030, rising to more than 1.18 million by 2050. Three Rivers District already hosts RES, 
an international renewables player. Emerging out of the restrictions of Covid 19 provides 
an opportunity to rebuild the economy and ensure the community is more resilient, as well 
as both environmentally and economically sustainable.  
 
There are several companies’ headquarters in Three Rivers District who are aiming for 
sub net zero such as Imagination Technologies and Nissan Motors GB. They see the 
need to upskill current and future staff. This also potentially creates demand for the 
enabling low carbon infrastructure available in the towns and villages where their staff live 
and work.  
 
PEOPLE AND SKILLS 
The District benefits from the proximity of West Herts College and the University of 
Hertfordshire and with a close working relationship with Community and Voluntary Sector 
(CVS) provider Ascend and the Prince’s Trust. The UKSPF presents an opportunity to 
continue working with these providers on delivery and if necessary refocusing of 
established programmes once the European Social Fund (ESF) funding ends to ensure 
continuity of provision.  
 
There is opportunity to not only unlock emerging talent and support local young people 
and also to provide adult learning towards employment and to refocus the existing 
educated/employed population to new skills and industries to meet local current and future 
demand.  
 
 

 

  

Page 22



7 
 

Interventions 

In this section, we will ask you about: 

• Interventions you’ve chosen for each year of funding 

• Outcomes you want to deliver 

• Any interventions that are not listed here 

• How these interventions fall under the UKSPF investment priorities, and your 

rationale for them 

• Interventions not included in our list will be assessed before being approved, where 

you will need to show a clear rationale, how the intervention is value for money, what 

outcomes it will deliver and how you will monitor and evaluate the intervention. This 

may include a theory of change or logic chain. 

WHAT ARE THE OUTCOMES YOU WANT TO DELIVER UNDER THE COMMUNITIES 
AND PLACE INVESTMENT PRIORITY? SELECT ALL THAT APPLY. 

Outcome 

 

Estimated Carbon dioxide equivalent reductions as a result of support 

Improved engagement numbers 

Improved perception of facilities/amenities 

Improved perception of facility/infrastructure project 

Increased users of facilities/amenities 

Increased affordability of events/entry 

Increased footfall 

Increased number of web searches for a place 

Increased take up of energy efficiency measures 

Jobs created as a result of support 

Jobs safeguarded as a result of support 

Number of community-led arts, cultural, heritage and creative programmes  

People engaged in life skills support following interventions 

Number of active or sustained participants in community groups as a result of support 

Number of people engaging with mainstream healthcare services 

Number of people familiarised with employers expectations, including, standards of 
behaviour in the workplace 

Number of people reporting increased employability through development of interpersonal 
skills funded by UKSPF 

Improved perception of attractions 

Increased amount of low or zero carbon energy infrastructure installed 

Increased business sustainability 

Increased number of enterprises supported 

Increased visitor numbers 

 

 

 

SELECT THE INTERVENTIONS YOU INTEND TO USE. YOU CAN SELECT AS MANY 
AS YOU LIKE. 

Intervention 
 

Communities and Place 

 

E2: Community & neighbourhood infrastructure projects 

Page 23



8 
 

E3: Creation of and improvements to local green spaces 

E4: Enhancing existing cultural, historic & heritage institutions offer 

E5: Built & landscaped environment to 'design out crime' 

E6: Local arts, cultural, heritage & creative activities 

E7: Support for active travel enhancements in local area 

E8: Campaigns to encourage visits and exploring of local area 

E9: Impactful volunteering and/or social action projects 

E10: Local sports facilities, tournaments, teams & leagues 

E11: Capacity building & infrastructure support local groups 

E12: Community engagement schemes, local regeneration 

E13: Community measures to reduce the cost of living 

E14: Relevant feasibility studies 

E15: Digital connectivity for local community facilities 

 

Supporting Local Business  

 

E16: Open markets & town centre retail & service sector 

E17: Development & promotion of visitor economy  

E19: Investment in research & development at the local level 

E23: Strengthening local entrepreneurial ecosystems 

E24: Training hubs, business support offers, incubators & accelerators 

E26: Growing the local social economy 

E29: Supporting decarbonisation & improving natural environment 

E30: Business support measures to drive employment growth 

 

People and Skills 

 

E33: Employment support for economically inactive people 

E34: Courses including basic, life & career skills 

E35: Enrichment & volunteering activities 

E36: Increase levels of digital inclusion, essential digital skills 

E41: Funding to support local digital skills  

 

 

DO YOU PLAN TO USE ANY INTERVENTIONS NOT INCLUDED IN THE 
INTERVENTIONS LIST FOR ENGLAND?  

State the name of each of these additional interventions and a brief description of 
each of these 

  
No  
 

 

HAVE YOU ALREADY IDENTIFIED ANY PROJECTS WHICH FALL UNDER THE 
INVESTMENT PRIORITIES? 

Describe these projects, including how they fall under the Communities and Place 
investment priority and the location of the proposed project. 

 

Page 24



9 
 

COMMUNITIES AND PLACE 
 
Biodiversity improvements in parks and open spaces including Rickmansworth 
Aquadrome 
Delivering against the Council’s Biodiversity Opportunities Audit action plan, a variety of 
improvements will invest in the natural environment and local green space through 
community-led projects which inspire a sense of local ownership and pride of place. 
 
Play areas, parks, open spaces and woodlands 
Furniture installation and replacement, accessibility improvements, biodiversity restoration 
initiatives, additional tree planting and the establishment and support of ‘Friends of’ groups 
at sites including Chorleywood House Estate, South Oxhey Playing Fields, Bishops Wood 
and other play areas across the district. 
 
Health Interventions 
These interventions aim to utilise and amplify current healthcare services, to support the 
work of the Health and Wellbeing Partnership run by Three Rivers District Council, and to 
work more closely with the Leisure team to better integration of health prevention and 
intervention with community green space across the District, leisure facilitates (in 
partnership with Herts Sports Partnership) and social interactions via social interventions. 
In particular this work will focus on under-represented communities and those with Long 
Term Health Conditions to address the health inequalities faced by these groups.  
 
Discounted Swimming lessons 
With the cost of living increasing, the offer of subsidised swimming lessons to children up 
to the age of 11 years subscribing to free school meals will be introduced. This will support 
local children in our most deprived households to meet the expectations of the government 
swimming and water safety recommendations, encourage and enable physical activity and 
positive engagement with sport, and ensure children have access to the same opportunities 
as those from more affluent households without placing additional financial burden on 
already struggling families.  
 
Arts and Culture Programme Development (incorporating Watersmeet Theatre)   
 
The aim of this project is to provide quality productions at affordable prices enabling less 
affluent residents to experience live theatre and make use of this arts and culture facility. 
Activities will include:   

• increasing footfall at the theatre through provision of more affordable access for 
those of lower household income levels, and therefore a more diverse audience  

• greater knowledge of theatre amongst secondary school students, through work 
experience opportunities.  
 

SUPPORTING LOCAL BUSINESS 
 
Business Engagement and Support resource: 
This resource will provision of advice, support and enhanced engagement with local 
businesses within the district through direct communications, relationship management, 
networking and support. Fortifying the work undertaken throughout the pandemic, this will 
build and maintain local business networks. This free access and impartial service acts as 
a gateway to other broader and more detailed business support provision, including start- 
up advice. Support will be targeted to meet differing requirements such as social 
enterprises, sustainability, rural or sector support via the advice, signposting, events, 
webinars and online support guides and resources. 
 

Page 25



10 
 

Supporting local businesses to decarbonise 
Working with businesses in Three Rivers, and those which locally supply Three Rivers 
District Council, to develop Sustainability and Carbon Reduction plans.  The project will 
provide practical support and advice on how local businesses can save money, expand 
their customer base by acquiring net zero credentials while simultaneously supporting the 
Council to meet its own Scope 3 decarbonisation ambitions. Through accessing capital 
funding, a (match funding) grant can be used to support participants via decarbonisation 
investments. 
 
 
 

Do you consider these projects may provide a subsidy to potential recipients of the 
funding under the proposed planned activity? 
All bids must also consider how they will deliver in line with subsidy control as set 
out in the guidance. 

 
No 
 

Detail the assessment you undertook to consider whether the proposed projects 
constitute a subsidy and any specific measures you will take to make sure the 
subsidy is permitted. 

 
Having reviewed the guidance published we are able to confirm that given the relative 
small size of the TRDC allocation under the Fund, that the financial threshold for subsidy 
will not be reached for any of the proposed projects.  
 

 

  

Page 26

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities


11 
 

ENGLAND ONLY: People and Skills interventions can only be used in 2022-2023 and 
2023-2024 if you have identified a local voluntary and community provision, previously 
supported by the European Social Fund, at risk of closure. If you have not identified a 
suitable provision, you will not be able to select interventions for 2022-2023 and 2023-
2024 and your investment plan will not be approved. 
 

HAVE YOU ALREADY IDENTIFIED ANY PROJECTS for 2024-2025 WHICH FALL 
UNDER THE PEOPLE AND SKILLS INVESTMENT PRIORITY? 

 
Yes 
 

Describe the projects for 2024-25, including how they fall under the People and 
Skills investment priority and the location of the proposed project. 

 
The Inclusive Employment Skills Programme 
Provision of one-to-one supported employment intervention to unemployed residents, 
aged 18 and above, that are further away from employment as a consequence of a 
learning difficulty or disability.  
 
The programme, to be delivered in partnership with local community and social sector 
providers, will adopt a person-centred approach, with job coaches and employment 
support officers working together with the individual participant to identify their needs and 
ambitions and develop an action plan to move them into work in the sector that they are 
interested in. Supporting with practical work experience and functional skills (through a 
new work experience and training facility), CV writing, interview techniques and the 
expectations of employers at the start of employment to ensure that the employer 
understands any adjustments needed and encourage sign up to the Disability Confident 
Scheme. 
 
Sustainable Community Hubs.  
Based on a hub and spoke model the town hubs situated within, or adjacent to, areas of 
nested deprivation and digital exclusion within the Districts urban centres, will reach out to 
the District’s villages and more rural communities, making use of a network of existing 
community buildings where services and support can be brought to the heart of, and be 
developed with, communities who would otherwise struggle to access them. Hubs will 
provide One-stop shops delivering free information, advice and support to help the 
community stay healthy and well with dedicated onsite health and wellbeing officers. They 
also provide safe spaces for partners to work with local clients and will continue to support 
the wider Place Based Health Inequalities Programme within the district. Through this fund 
the Hubs will support additional services responding to the needs that will arise from cost of 
living price increases – in particular food provision and financial/back to employment/skills 
support. The Council further aims to broaden its delivery partners in line with the 
interventions of the Fund.  
 

HAVE YOU IDENTIFIED A LOCAL VOLUNTARY PROVISION AT RISK AS PART OF 
YOUR PEOPLE AND SKILLS INVESTMENT PRIORITIES? 

 
Yes 
 

(If Yes) Describe the local voluntary provision at risk and your rationale for 
supporting it. 

 
Building Better Opportunities has historically been funded through the ESF. Since its start 
in 2016/17, the programme has accessed circa £11.6m. In Three Rivers this programme 

Page 27



12 
 

is delivered locally via ASCEND a locally based charitable organisation sited in the 
Districts main area of deprivation 
 
The ESF funding for this programme ends in December 2022.  
 

  
Both the Building Better Opportunities (BBO) and our Inclusive Employment (IE) projects 
are countywide projects managed by Step 2 Skills (Hertfordshire County Council (HCC)) 
with a group of delivery partners. Both of these projects target people who are either 
unemployed or economically inactive with complex barriers to employment, including (but 
not limited to) disabilities, learning difficulties, mental health issues, long term 
unemployment, ex-offenders, carers etc. 
 
For the IE partnership we have one Voluntary Sector partner and one private organisation. 
The rest of our partners are internal to HCC. However for the BBO we have a total of 12 
CVS partners across Hertfordshire which represents circa 85-90% of all delivery.  
 
The pandemic had a greater impact on people in these groups, particularly those with 
learning difficulties or disabilities (LDD) with twice as many people with LDD issues losing 
their jobs than those without (ONS April 21). In 2020 there was already a 30% gap in the 
employment rate of people with disabilities and those without (81% of people without 
disabilities being employed compared to 52% with disabilities), so the pandemic will just 
have compounded that issue.  
 
People with mental health (MH) issues at the start of the pandemic were also likely to 
report a worsening of their mental health during lockdown and through the lifting of 
restrictions. 

 
Our VCS partners are crucial in reaching those most in need of our support and they offer 
a safe place for people who would not normally engage with councils or other statutory or 
more formal organisations. They are embedded in communities with specialist knowledge 
of certain barriers (e.g. MH, offenders, carers) to offer the best support possible for 
individuals 
Without these organisations working alongside us our offer would be poorer and not meet 
the needs of the most disadvantaged in Three Rivers who would just get left even further 
behind.  
 

Provide the European Social Fund Project Names and Project References for this 
voluntary and community provision at risk. 

 
Building Better Opportunities – STRIVE – Reference   10285800 Hert1/1 
Building Better Opportunities – Youth – Reference   10285807 Hert1/2 
 

What year do you intend to fund these projects? Select all that apply. 

  
2023-2024 
 

 
2024-2025 

Describe the projects for 2022-2023 and 2023-2024, including how they fall under 
the People and Skills investment priority and the location of the proposed project. 

ESF and National Lottery funds for the Building Better Opportunities (BBO) projects are 
ending on 31st December 2022. The projects are aimed at people who are unemployed or 
economically inactive and have multiple complex barriers to engagement and 
employment. The projects provide 1-1 tailored mentoring support to enable participants to 
re-engage and move into paid employment, education or job search (for those who were 

Page 28



13 
 

economically inactive at the start of the project). The project also runs BBO Hubs – 
community venues opened on a weekly basis as a place for anyone to drop in and find out 
more about the project, talk to / be signposted to other support that is available – and 
often present on the hub days (such as CAB, debt advice, food banks, mental health 
support etc), to sign up to the project or, for current participants to meet their mentor. 
 
Via our CVS delivery partners, all interventions start with the mentor and participant 
working together to create a plan to move the participant towards their goal. This may 
involve them joining activities to improve their confidence and help them get out of their 
house (which for some is a very big step, especially after the pandemic), doing courses to 
improve their skills or undertaking work experience / work tasters to find out the types of 
job they would like to do. The participant and mentor then have regular meetings to 
discuss progress and next steps with the ultimate aim of signing off the participant with a 
positive outcome. 
  
The BBO projects is a countywide offer, improving employment chances for people in 
Hertfordshire and where needed improving their skills as well. Project beneficiaries are 
referred to courses to improve skills in English, maths, digital skills if they need that, but 
also to support the improvement in their confidence, team work, or in reducing anxiety etc. 
It is also well evidenced that employment, training and Community Learning can have a 
positive impact on people’s wellbeing – their mental health, their economic well-being, 
their sense of being part of a community. All of these outcomes fit within the People and 
Skills investment priority. 
  

Do you consider these projects may provide a subsidy to potential recipients of the 
funding under the proposed planned activity? 
All bids must also consider how they will deliver in line with subsidy control as set 
out in the guidance. 

 
No 
 

Detail the assessment you undertook to consider whether the proposed projects 
constitute a subsidy and any specific measures you will take to make sure the 
subsidy is permitted. 

 
The existing BBO projects are funded through the European Social Fund. During the set 
up and at regular intervals during the project the work has been assessed to ensure that it 
is compliant with State Aid rules. The Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) have undertaken 
legal reviews using the ESF State Aid checklist and passed audit assurance from the 
DWP that the projects do not constitute subsidy / state aid. 
 

 

  

Page 29

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities


14 
 

Approach to delivery and governance 

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND SUPPORT 

Have you engaged with any of the following as part of your investment plan? Select 
all that apply. 

Public sector organisations Private sector organisations Civil society organisations 

Describe how you have engaged with any of these organisations. Give examples 
where possible. 

 
Given the short timescales available ahead of submission of the Investment Plan, 
engagement has taken place through existing partnership boards and groups and where 
necessary via one to one meetings and email correspondence. This has included 
discussion of the priorities and interventions at the Local Strategic Partnership, 
Community Safety Board. A number of meeting have been held with local Community and 
Voluntary Sector organisations, the LEP and with the Herefordshire Local Authorities   
Hertfordshire Economic.  
 

Summarise the governance structures you have in place, including how any 
advisory panels or associated partnership groups are made up 

 
The Investment plan will be delivered under Three Rivers District Council’s Project 
Management Framework and will report internally to the Major Projects Board which 
includes the S151 Officer. 
 
The Investment Plan Delivery Team will be established compromising the Programme 
Manager, Project Managers for each intervention and appropriate representatives from 
delivery partners. Its primary role will be to implement the various work streams and it will 
meet monthly to ensure adequate progress is being made. The delivery team will compile 
bimonthly reports for the TRDC Major Projects Board and quarterly reports for the Local 
Strategic Partnership which will include as standard risk and issue logs and any necessary 
risk escalation. 
 
The Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) will provide local insight and expertise serve as the 
designated Partnership Group for the development and delivery of the Funds Investment 
Plan. Local MPs have and will continue to be invited to attend in relation to this Fund.  
 

Confirm all MPs covering your lead local authority have been invited to join the 
local partnership group. 

 
Yes 
 

Are there MPs who are not supportive of your investment plan? 

 
No 
 

(If Yes) Who are the MPs that are not supportive and outline their reasons why. 

 
Not Applicable 
 

 

 

 

Page 30



15 
 

PROJECT SELECTION 

Are you intending to select projects in any way other than by competition for 
funding? 

Yes 

(If Yes) Describe your approach to selecting projects, and why you intend to do it 
this way. 

 
The Council has existing commissioning in place with the main delivery partners that in 
some cases may quickly be adapted to encompass expansion of existing or refocusing to 
new interventions which have or may be identified to be delivered through the Fund, A 
number of the proposed interventions represent an escalation, expansion or refocusing of 
existing and/or already planned medium to longer term projects and as such much of the 
commissioning and contract infrastructure to mobilise them is already in place. Where 
appropriate selection by competition will be used.  
 

 

DO YOU INTEND TO WORK WITH OTHER PLACES ON ANY OF THE 
INTERVENTIONS WHICH FALL UNDER THE COMMUNITIES AND PLACE 
INVESTMENT PRIORITY? 

Which interventions do you intend to collaborate on?  

Intervention  

  

E9: Impactful volunteering and/or social action projects  

E11: Capacity building & infrastructure support local groups  

E13: Community measures to reduce the cost of living  

E29: Supporting decarbonisation & improving the natural environment  

E33: Employment support for economically inactive people  

E34: Courses including basic, life & career skills  

E35: Enrichment & volunteering activities  

  

Describe any interventions not included in this list? 

 
Not Applicable  
 

Who are the places you intend to collaborate with? 

 
TRDC has a strong history of collaborative working across the wider Hertfordshire (County 
District, Borough and Parish) and East of England (e.g. through the LEP ) geographical 
and administrative areas on a wide range of projects with a number of shared service 
arrangements in place particularly with neighbouring Watford. It is anticipated that this will 
continue through the delivery of this Fund where it is sensible to do and the issues to be 
addressed cross administrative boundaries and tiers of local government.  
 
 

 

PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY 

How have you considered your public sector equality duty in the design of your 
investment plan? 

 
An Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken in line with the TRDC 
Comprehensive Equalities and Diversity programme and will be reviewed and updated 
throughout the life of the investment plan  

Page 31



16 
 

How will you consider your public sector equality duty when implementing your 
investment plan, including in the selection of projects? 

 
All interventions which are considered and progress as part of the Investment Plan will be 
subject to Equalities Impact Assessment under the TRDC Comprehensive Equalities 
Policy and procedures. For all projects a full Equalities Impact Assessment will be 
completed at key stages (scoping, development, delivery milestones and evaluation).  
 

 

Page 32



17 
 

RISKS 

Have you identified any key risks that could affect delivery, for example lack of staff or expertise? 

 
Yes the main risks will be linked to the pace of mobilisation and the ability to demonstrate realisation of meaningful outcomes within the 
short funding time envelope particularly in the first year. 
 

(If Yes) Describe these risks or issues, including the contingency measures you have in place to mitigate them. 

Risks Description Owner 
Probability 

(H,M,L) 

Impact 

(H,M,L) 
Mitigation 

Delay in or failure to 

recruit/reassign or 

commission delivery 

staff and/or partners  

Project 

Manager 

(TRDC) 

L M Recruitment is ready to commence immediately on confirmation of the 

bid and will include staff secondment where appropriate.  

Temporary redeployment of existing staff can be utilised to bridge the 

recruitment gap and enable delivery to commence immediately for 

those projects now already underway  

A reasonable allocation of time has been made within help project plan 

based on previous experience of similar interventions 

Where necessary agency/contract staff may be used. 

Local communities 

are unwilling to 

engage with 

interventions 

Project 

manager 

(TRDC) 

L H Strong relationships with local and business communities are already in 

place via Council officers and all the selected trusted delivery partners. 

There is no reason to believe this will not continue throughout the 

duration of the plans delivery.  Senior Officers, including the Chief 

Executive meet regularly with our partners and will be able to discuss 

any issues throughout the delivery period. 

The inclusion of professional referral pathways to funded interventions 

will support voluntary engagement. 

P
age 33



18 
 

Awareness of the 

Investment plan and 

its interventions is 

low  

Project Lead 

for each 

intervention  

L M A strong brand and targeted communications strategy will be developed 

and delivering including use of professional referral pathways and pre-

existing communications channels with established audiences and 

through trusted partners for new/emerging audiences. 

The scheme will 

over/underspend or 

not be delivered 

within timescale 

Project 

Manager 

(TRDC)  

L M The Investment Plan delivery team have experience of successfully 

delivering similar programmes to budget and within set timescales. 

Robust project and financial management processes are in place and 

will be applied to the Fund programme from inception with any issues 

identified early and dealt with swiftly. 

 
 

Have you identified any key fraud risks that could affect UKSPF delivery? 

Yes 

(If Yes) Describe these risks or issues, including the contingency measures you have in place to mitigate them. 

 

Risks Description Owner 
Probability 

(H,M,L) 

Impact 

(H,M,L) 
Mitigation 

Fraudulent Activity Project 

Manager 

(TRDC) 

L M Robust Internal Procedures and checks are in place and regularly 

audited to prevent and detect fraudulent activity both in terms of internal 

actions and commissioned services. With regards fraudulent activity by 

members of the public who may be in appropriately benefiting from 

interventions as a result of fraud, again robust processes and checks 

are in place and regularly audited  including audit functions on Council 

software systems and cross referencing of multiple systems such as 

Land Registry and Experian to check and approve applicants 

information; Prosecution can be progressed if fraud is detected, 
 

 

P
age 34



19 
 

Capacity and capability 

In this section, we will ask you about: 

• The capacity and capability of your team to manage funding 

• The resources you have in place for work related to UKSPF 

Your answers here will help us know how to support you with delivery. They will not affect 

the amount of funding you will get. 

Answer as honestly as possible. 

TEAM RESOURCE 

How many people (FTE) will be put in place to work with UKSPF funding? 

 
2.6 FTE  
 

Describe what role these people will have, including any seniority and experience. 

0.5 FTE will be recruited to provide administration of the Fund and its governance 
structures.  
 
0.2 FTE Head of Service resource will be allocated to the work on and provide 
management oversight of the Fund delivery  
 
1.5 FTE officer level resource will be allocated to provide delivery support specifically 
relating to economic development and business support in relation to the UKSPF 
interventions 
 
0.4 FTE officer level support will be allocated to provide delivery support specifically 
relating to community engagement and health inequalities USPF interventions  
 
Other staff across the Council and its partner agencies will provide day to day support for 
the delivery of UKSPF intervention and administration of the fund as part of their 
substantive positions. 
 

 

• Strong capability: Has extensive experience and/or a proven track record of delivery 

in this area. 

• Strong capacity: High degree of confidence that there is enough staffing/resource to 

manage funding in this area. 

• Some capability: Has previous experience of delivery in this area. 

• Some capacity: Confident that there is enough staffing/resource to manage funding 

in this area. 

• Limited capability: Does not have previous experience and/or no track record of 

delivery in this area. 

• Limited capacity: Limited confidence that there is enough staffing/resource to 

manage funding in this area. Additional resource may be needed to support delivery. 

CAPACITY AND CAPABILITY 

How would you describe your team’s current experience of delivering funding and 
managing growth funds? 

 
Some experience 
 

Page 35



20 
 

How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for 
procurement? 

 
Strong capability 
 

How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for 
procurement? 

 
Strong capability 
 

How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for 
procurement? 

 
Strong capacity 
 

How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for 
subsidies? 

 
Limited capability 
 

How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for 
subsidies? 

 
Some capacity 
 

 

COMMUNITIES AND PLACE CAPACITY AND CAPABILITY 

Does your local authority have any previous experience of delivering the 
Communities and Place interventions you have select? 

Yes 
 

How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for 
Communities and Place interventions? 

 
Strong capability 
 

Describe the key capability challenges (if you have any) for delivering Communities 
and Place interventions. This may include challenges within your local authority 
and/or your local/regional delivery system. 

 
N/A 
 

Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 

 
Regional/national best practise sharing   
 

How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for 
Communities and Place interventions? 

 
Some capacity 
 

Page 36



21 
 

Describe the key capacity challenges (if you have any) for delivering Communities 
and Place interventions. This may include challenges within your local authority 
and/or your local/regional delivery system. 

 
Limited staff capacity with multiple priorities 
 

Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 

 
Further additional funding for Local Authorities at District level to undertake and deliver 
this work  
 

 

SUPPORTING LOCAL BUSINESS CAPACITY AND CAPABILITY 

Does your local authority have any previous experience of delivering the 
Supporting Local Business interventions you have select? 

 
Yes 
 

How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for 
Supporting Local Business interventions? 

 
Some capability 
 

Describe the key capability/capacity challenges (if you have any) for delivering 
Supporting Local Business interventions. This may include challenges within your 
local authority and/or your local/regional delivery system. 

 
With LEPs having in recent years undertaken the lead for the delivery of interventions in 
this area this has left a capability and capacity gap at local authority level. Recent work 
undertaken throughout the pandemic has however shown that local businesses are keen 
to engage directly with Local Authorities and that in many cases Local Authorities are best 
places to build relationships with local business.  This however requires additional 
investment at a local level which UKSPF will go some way towards addressing.  
 

Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 

 
Further funding for this resources at Local Authority level and regional/national  best 
practise sharing   
 

How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for 
Supporting Local Business interventions? 

 
Some capacity 
 

Describe the key capacity challenges (if you have any) for delivering Supporting 
Local Business interventions. This may include challenges within your local 
authority and/or your local/regional delivery system. 

 
With LEPs having in recent years undertaken the lead for the delivery of interventions in 
this area this has left a capability and capacity gap at local authority level. Recent work 
undertaken throughout the pandemic has however shown that local businesses are keen 
to engage directly with Local Authorities and that in many cases Local Authorities are best 

Page 37



22 
 

places to build relationships with local business.  This however requires additional 
investment at a local level which UKSPF will go some way towards addressing.  
 

Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 

 
Further additional funding for Local Authorities at District level to undertake and deliver 
this work  
 

 

PEOPLE AND SKILLS CAPACITY AND CAPABILITY 

Does your local authority have any previous experience of delivering the People 
and Skills interventions you have select? 

 
Yes 
 

How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for 
People and Skills interventions? 

 
Some capability 
 

Describe the key capability challenges (if you have any) for delivering People and 
Skills interventions. This may include challenges within your local authority and/or 
your local/regional delivery system. 

 
Delivery of these intervention relies on partnership working with local community and 
voluntary sector providers. Many providers are struggling post Covid  and with the onset of 
cost of living issues to retain staff and volunteers and this could lead to a capability gap if 
not properly monitored and supported. 
 

Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 

 
Unknown  
 

How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for 
People and Skills interventions? 

 
Strong Capacity 
 

Describe the key capacity challenges (if you have any) for delivering People and 
Skills interventions. This may include challenges within your local authority and/or 
your local/regional delivery system. 

Delivery of these interventions relies on partnership working with local community and 
voluntary sector providers. Many providers are struggling post Covid  and with the onset of 
cost of living issues to retain staff and volunteers and this could lead to a capacity gaps if 
not properly monitored and supported. 
 

Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 

 
National review/amendment of student visas restriction which limit the hours that can be 
worked which is increasingly resulting in students unable to volunteer as they increasingly 
need to take on paid employment to meet their costs of living.  
 
 

Page 38



23 
 

 

SUPPORT TO DELIVERY UKSPF 

 
All lead authorities can use up to 4% of their UKSPF allocation to support the delivery of 

their chosen interventions but by exception, lead authorities will be able to use more than 

4%. Are you planning to use more than 4%? 

 

 
No 
 

(If Yes) Explain why you wish to use more than 4%. 

 
Not applicable 
 

 

Approvals 

Before submitting your investment plan, you should have approval from your: 

• Chief Executive Officer 

• Section 151 Officer 

• Leader of your lead authority 

Do you have approval from your Chief Executive Officer for this investment plan? 

o Yes 

Do you have approval from your Section 151 Officer for this investment plan? 

o Yes 

Do you have approval from the leader of your lead authority for this investment plan? 

o Yes 

 

If you do not have approval from any of these people, please explain why this is: 

 
Not Applicable  
 
 

Additional documents 

You will have received an email giving you access to a folder where you will need to upload 

supporting evidence to your investment plan. All applicants must complete and upload the 

following spreadsheet to the folder prior to submitting their investment plan: 

- UKSPF Expenditure Profile spreadsheet 

- UKSPF Indicative Deliverables spreadsheet 

  

Page 39



24 
 

Your investment plan submission will be considered incomplete without the required 

documents. 

Have you completed and uploaded the two spreadsheets to the SharePoint folder as 

requested? 

o Yes 

 

Page 40



LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 

January 2024 

 

UK SHARED PROSPERITY FUND 2022-25  

1. Summary  

 

1.1. In February 2022 HMG Levelling Up, White Paper was published, which sets out 

how opportunity will be spread more equally across the UK.  In order to support the 

ambitions of the Levelling Up Paper, the Government allocated £2.6bn through the 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) over 3 years. Three Rivers District Council 

was awarded £1m for 2022-25.  

 

1.2. In order to access the allocation of funding, Three Rivers District Council was 

required to submit a Local Investment Plan, which it did in August 2022. The 

Investment Plan included a high level outline of the interventions and investments 

that the funding will prioritise, together with an overview of the expected outputs and 

outcomes.  

 

1.3. This report provides an update on the delivery of the investment plan.   

 

2.  Details  

 

2.1. The UKSPF is the Government’s domestic replacement for the European Structural 

and Investment Programme (ESIF). The UKSPF aims to contribute to the ‘Levelling 

Up’ agenda by providing financial assistance to boost productivity, tackle 

geographical inequalities and improve life chances, especially in deprived areas.  

 

2.2. The four Levelling Up objectives are to:  

 

2.2.1. Boost productivity, pay, jobs and living standards by growing the private 

sector, especially in those places where they are lagging 

2.2.2. Spread opportunities and improve public services, especially in those places 

where they are weakest  

2.2.3. Restore a sense of community, local pride and belonging, especially in those 

places where they have been lost  

2.2.4. Empower local leaders and communities, especially in those places lacking 

local agency  

 

2.3. Government’s stated primary goal of the UKSPF is to build pride in place and 

increase life chances across the UK. This aligns with Levelling Up White Paper 

‘missions’, particularly: ‘By 2030, pride in place, such as people’s satisfaction with 

their town centre and engagement in local culture and community, will have risen in 

every area of the UK, with the gap between the top performing and other areas 

closing.’  

 

2.4. The UKSPF was launched on 13 April 2022, providing £2.6 billion of funding 

nationally for local investment by March 2025. A further £179 million is being 

Page 41



managed centrally by the Department of Education to improve adult numeracy 

through the ‘Multiply’ Programme  

 

2.5. The aim of the scheme is to support the UK government’s Levelling Up commitment 

through three investment priorities: 

 

2.6.  Communities and place.  

 

2.6.1. Strengthening our social fabric and fostering a sense of local pride and 

belonging, through investment in activities that enhance physical, cultural and 

social ties and access to amenities, such as community infrastructure and local 

green space, and  

 

2.6.2. Building resilient, healthy and safe neighbourhoods, through investment in 

quality places that people want to live, work, play and learn in, through targeted 

improvements to the built and natural environment innovative approaches to 

crime prevention.  

 

2.7. Supporting local business.  

2.7.1. Creating jobs and boosting community cohesion, through investments that 

build on existing industries and institutions, and range from support for starting 

businesses to visible improvements to local retail, hospitality and leisure sector 

facilities.  

2.7.2. Promoting networking and collaboration, through interventions that bring 

together businesses and partners within and across sectors to share 

knowledge, expertise and resources, and stimulate innovation and growth.  

2.7.3. Increasing private sector investment in growth-enhancing activities, through 

targeted support for small and medium-sized businesses to undertake new-to 

firm innovation, adopt productivity-enhancing, energy efficient and low carbon 

technologies and techniques, and start or grow their exports.  

 

2.8. People and skills (funding under this priority is available in the third year) 

 

2.8.1. Boosting core skills and support adults to progress in work, by targeting 

adults with no or low level qualifications and skills in maths, and upskill the 

working population, yielding personal and societal economic impact  

 

2.8.2. Reducing levels of economic inactivity through investment in bespoke 

intensive life and employment support tailored to local need. Investment should 

facilitate the join-up of mainstream provision and local services within an area 

for participants, through the use of one-to-one keyworker support, improving 

employment outcomes for specific cohorts who face labour market barriers.  

 

2.8.3. Supporting people furthest from the labour market to overcome barriers to 

work by providing cohesive, locally tailored support including access to basic 

skills. 

 

2.8.4. Supporting local areas to fund gaps in local skills provision to support people 

to progress in work, and supplement local adult skills provision e.g., by 

providing additional volumes; delivering provision through wider range of routes 

or enabling more intensive/innovative provision, both qualification based, and 

Page 42



non-qualification based. This should be supplementary to provision available 

through national employment and skills programmes.  

 

2.9. For each Investment Priority there are a set of ‘Interventions’ with associated 

outputs and outcomes. Investment Plans for the UKSPF were required to select 

some or all the Interventions and this will became the basis for the future use of the 

funding.  

 

Investment Plan  

2.10. TRDC submitted its required Investment Plan in August 2022. This plan sets 

out a justification for investment against the interventions selected from the pre-

determined list. 

 

TRDC’s Allocation  

2.11. Funding was allocated to local authorities using a formula rather than a 

competition, with TRDC being awarded £1m over three years distributed as 

follows.  

 Capital (min) Revenue 

2022/23 £9,403 £80,863 

2023/24 £24,47 £156,085 

2023/25 £143,584 £545,620 

 

2.12. A proportion of the allocation (4%) is identified within the funding guidance to 

undertake Fund administration.  

 

2.13. Whilst Local Authorities are encouraged to provide match funding this is not 

mandatory.  

 

2.14. It was originally expected that funding would be released to Local Authorities in 

October 2022, however this did not actually take place until February 2023, 

leaving just 8 weeks for the first year of funding for delivery. Despite this officers 

were able to mobilise and deliver against the majority of the Year 1 programme. 

This was possible through the reprofile of work streams, primarily in the 

investment area of Community and Place, where delivery with and through 

partners supported the achievement of 92% spend with DLUHC approving carry-

over of the remaining unspent funds (£3,882). 

 

Spend and delivery to date  

2.15. The administration allocation has been used, in line with the fund guidance, in 

Year 1 and year 2 to support initial preparatory work for and ongoing 

administration of the UKSPF programme through provision of additional staff 

resources. 

 

2.16. An overview of the agreed UKSPF priorities for TRDC is provided as Appendix 1 

together with an update of delivery against each.  Output and Outcome reporting 

will be prepared as part of the Year 2 programme reporting to DLUHC in May 

Page 43



2024 and this will be reported to the LSP to provide further detail on the impact 

of the fund within the District.  

 

2.17. Currently, despite significant delays in the original release of the funding the 

overall programme remains on track to spend and deliver by March 2025.  

3. Recommendations  

3.1 That the Partnership Board note the progress made to date on delivery of the UKSPF 

programme against the approved Investment Plan.  

Report prepared by: Emma Sheridan, Associate Director for Customer and 

Community.  

Page 44



 

APPENDIX 1 
List of priorities for the UKSPF Allocation in Three Rivers 
 

Project Name  Project Description 
Spend Profile  

Delivery Update 
22/23 23/24 24/25 Total  

UKSPF Economic 

Growth Project 

Officer 

1 FTE  to support project management and 

delivery of the Fund and delivery of associated 

economic development projects 

£29,239 £45,478 £45,478 

£120,195 

Funding utilised for officer time to support 

development of the plan and ongoing 

development, mobilisation and monitoring of the 

UKSPF programme. Year 1 focus was on 

community development projects   

Place Based Health 

Inequalities 

Initiatives  

To utilise and amplify current healthcare 

services, to support the work of the Health and 

Wellbeing Partnership & link in with Leisure - 

in line with the new Herts Sports Partnership 

strategy 

£5,000 £5,000 £5,000 £15,000 

Year 1 spend was re-profiled to £6k which funded 

a commissioned Health Needs Assessment from 

HCC Public Health. Delivery in Year 2 has focused 

on addressing needs in the area of cancer 

detection and prevention. 

Sustainable 

Community Hubs 

Infrastructure and service support for 

community anchors based on local need & 

support for establishing longer term 

sustainability 

£18,300 £40,600 £31,000 £89,900 

Funded has supported an SLA with WACA to build 

capacity within the organisation to better 

support and ensure the voice of the African 

Caribbean Community is heard in Three Rivers. In 

addition funding has supported the continued 

development of the Health Hubs programme 

within the District and in Year 2 capital funding 

has been provided to replace the roof of the Mill 

End Community Centre.   

Watersmeet 

Programme 

Development 

Support the development of the artistic 

programme and affordable access to arts and 

culture  

£18,324 £9,454 £15,762 £43,540 

Funding has supported access to theatre during 

school holidays  for those who would otherwise 

not have been able to afford it and the costs of 

hosting events that enhance the diversity of 

community events at the theatre including 

events during South Asian Heritage Month and 

Black History month 

P
age 45



Access to Local 

Sports  
Subsidised swimming lessons £10,000 £15,000 £15,000 £30,000 

Working with schools, free swimming lessons and 

provision of swimming equipment (costumes, 

goggles) have been provided to young people 

who would otherwise not be able to afford it. 

This scheme has run successfully at both South 

Oxhey and William Penn Leisure Centres 

Business 

Communications and 

Engagement  

To support and enhance engagement with 

local businesses and opportunities within the 

district  

  £45,000 £45,000 £90,000 

Officer in post and delivering programme of 

engagement. 

Inclusive 

Employment  

Infrastructure to support young people with 

learning difficulties to develop skills through 

work experience which will lead to 

employment. 

  £20,000 £20,000 £40,000 

This project is currently at scoping stage of 

development and will be delivered in 2024/25. 

Spend will be reprofiled to Year 3  

Biodiversity 

Improvements in 

parks and open 

spaces  

Delivering against the BOA action plan. This 

includes community bulb and tree planting, 

wetland creation and restoration of hedgerows 

    £50,000 £50,000 

Delivery not programmed for delivery until 

2024/25 

Rickmansworth 

Aquadrome 

 Programme of projects improving the visitor 

experience and accessibility of the site and 

future proofing the Aquadrome 

    £150,000 £150,000 

Delivery not programmed for delivery until 

2024/25 

Investment in Play 

areas, Parks, Open 

Spaces and 

Woodlands  

Support delivery of the approved Management 

Plans  
£9,403   £142,000 £156,403 

The Year 1 capital allocation supported the 

refurbishment of Barton Way Play Area.  

Supporting local 

businesses to 

decarbonise 

Support local businesses to develop and 

deliver Sustainability and Carbon Reduction 

plans.   

    £170,000 £170,000 

Delivery not programmed for delivery until 

2024/25 

  Total  90,266 180,532 689,240 960,038   

   
 

P
age 46



Action Plan 2023-2025

  Three Rivers 
‘a district of   
 connected 
 communities’

Three Rivers
Local Strategic

Partnership

m
oving forward, stronger t

og
et

he
r

Page 47

Agenda Annex



Stable Economy

2

Support our 
residents through the 
cost of living crisis.

Action Timescale Lead partnership / organisation
Maintaining community support group 
meetings with local organisations in 
South Oxhey, Mill End and Abbots 
Langley, Chorleywood & Sarratt.

2023 - 2025 Watford and 
Three Rivers Trust

Developing new community support 
group meeting networks in Croxley and 
Rickmansworth.

2024 - 2025 Watford and 
Three Rivers Trust

Distribution of Household Support Fund 
to local organisations to best support 
Three Rivers residents. 

2023 - 2024 Three Rivers District Council

That’s a Wrap  - 6 week cooking project, 
to cook healthy meals on a budget, 
reduce food waste, access local services

2023 - 2024 Three Rivers District Council

Produce and disseminate a leaflet 
containing information on support 
available to residents  

2023 Adults with Complex Needs

Provide advice on where residents can 
access support

2023 - 2024 Adults with Complex Needs 

Welcoming hubs to be jointly branded 
and locations coordinated through 
Support Group Meetings

2023 - 2024 Three Rivers Community 
Support Group Meeting

Page 48



Stable Economy

3

Promoting local 
employment and 
volunteering opportunities

Action Timescale Lead partnership / organisation
Hold 2 local Volunteers Fair to showcase 
local organisations and allow residents 
to explore opportunities

2023 - 2025 Adults with Complex Needs

Promotion of local volunteering 
opportunities through Golden 
Volunteer platform 

2023 - 2025 Watford and Three Rivers Trust

Employer Supported Volunteering linking 
in with skills required by VCFSE 

2023 - 2025 Adults with Complex Needs

Work with local businesses to upskill 
the local workforce

Action Timescale Lead partnership / organisation
Identify local employment sector & skill 
requirement in partnership with local 
colleges

2023 - 2024 Local Strategic Partnership

Host generation event to support the 
growth of local retrofit and green skills 
sector & promote local employment 
opportunities  

2024 Local Strategic Partnership

Local task group to identify businesses 
and develop relationships 

2023 - 2025 Local Strategic Partnership

Identify and engage largest employers 2023 - 2025 Local Strategic Partnership

Page 49



Safe and Well 
Communities

4

To empower 
residents to adopt 
healthier lifestyles

Action Timescale Lead partnership / organisation
Host 2 community fairs to showcase 
local support services, providing free 
entertainment and activities for residents 
of all ages. 

2023 - 2024 Three Rivers District Council

Coordinated approach to partnership 
events to ensure most benefit to 
attendees 

2023 - 2025 Local Strategic Partnership

Adopt a place based approach to 
address health inequalities

Action Timescale Lead partnership / organisation
To deliver a place based project to improve 
access for breast cancer screening 

2023 - 2024 Health and Wellbeing 
Partnership

Deliver football sessions to improve 
mental health and access to local services

2023 Health and Wellbeing 
Partnership

Address wider determinants of health 
inequalities through outdoor activity 
programme to improve wellbeing and 
access to local services 

2023 - 2025 Health and Wellbeing 
Partnership

To deliver a place based project to 
prevent development of lung cancer

2023 - 2024 Health and Wellbeing 
Partnership

Evaluation of 2023-24 projects and review 
of data to determine 24-25 direction

2024 Health and Wellbeing 
Partnership

Deliver a face to face Healthy Hub 
service in areas of the district to improve 
the health and wellbeing of residents

2023 - 2024 Three Rivers District Council

Page 50



Safe and Well 
Communities

5

Maintain and 
grow the work of the 
Community Safety Partnership

Action Timescale Lead partnership / organisation
Delivery of the 2023-24 Community 
Safety Action Plan.

2023 - 2024 Community Safety Partnership

ASB and waste reduction initiative in 
multiple locations highlighted by housing 
providers. To include local partners and 
health awareness.   

2023 Community Safety Partnership

Evaluation of 2023-24 projects and 
review of data to determine 24-25 
direction 

2024 Community Safety Partnership

Review Community Safety Strategic 
Assessment to develop priorities for 
2024 - 24 based on trends

2024 - 2025 Community Safety Partnership

Production and delivery of action plan to 
respond to new priorities

2024 - 2025 Community Safety Partnership

Page 51



Thriving Environment

6

Lead, enable and 
inspire our communities 
to reduce their carbon 
emissions and proactively 
offset carbon emissions
Action Timescale Lead partnership / organisation
Promotion of green energy installation 
and retrofit measures to increase public 
awareness

2023 - 2024 Local Strategic Partnership

Support our communities to adapt 
to extreme weather
Action Timescale Lead partnership / organisation
Establish a Wildfire Prevention Task 
group to mitigate risk of wildfires and 
develop campaigns to increase public 
awareness

2023 - 2025 Local Strategic Partnership

Provide a Severe Weather Emergency 
Protocol to provide humanitarian 
accommodation and support for rough 
sleepers to prevent anyone becoming 
unwell due to severe weather conditions

2023 - 2025 Three Rivers District Council

Develop and issue advice relating to 
cooling the home during extreme heat

2024 - 2025 Local Strategic Partnership

Distribute Warm in Winter bags during 
winter months to support older residents 
in accessing local services and keeping 
warm

2023 Three Rivers District Council

Develop and issue advice on how to 
adapt the home in preparation of floods 
and what to do in the event of one

2023 - 2025 Three Rivers District Council

Page 52



Belonging

7

Celebrate and 
create local culture that 
reflects our communities

Action Timescale Lead partnership / organisation
Develop and implement Craft and 
Culture events in Three Rivers reflective 
of the diverse cultures within our 
communities

2023 - 2024 Three Rivers District Council

Support in the development of 
sustainable community hubs

Action Timescale Lead partnership / organisation
Submit funding application to develop 
this area of work

2023 - 2024 Three Rivers District Council

Page 53



  Three Rivers 
‘a district of   
 connected 
 communities’

Page 54


	Agenda
	3 10.05 AM MINUTES AND ACTIONS FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING NOT OTHERWISE ON THE AGENDA
	 10.30 AM Violence against women and girls
	Slide 1: Violence Against Women and Girls
	Slide 2: About VAWG
	Slide 3: Changes for a better way of life
	Slide 4: What can we do as organisations?
	Slide 5: What we are doing locally- Partnership working 
	Slide 6: Summary
	Slide 7

	 11.05 AM UK Shared Prosperity Fund
	UKSPF - LSP Report 2024.01

	 11.15 AM Community Strategy Action Plan

